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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning,

          3  everybody. I would like to welcome the massive

          4  audience here assembled to this session of the

          5  Council Finance Committee.

          6                 We have a moderately brief agenda, so

          7  if everybody pays just the slightest bit of

          8  attention, we can expeditiously deal with it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Any time you

         10  jump, I say how high.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Robles, your

         12  exuberance is duly noted, and I would assume that

         13  you would exercise your vote with the same level of

         14  excitement and exuberance.

         15                 In any event, Mr. Robles, may I

         16  continue?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Absolutely.

         18  Move forward.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Jim, do you have

         20  an agenda?

         21                 All right, so today we have before us

         22  three Land Use items and two BIDs.

         23                 Let's do the three Land Use items,

         24  since we can kind of like quickly go through those

         25  and hopefully, the two BIDs will also be quickly
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          2  dealt with.

          3                 Good morning, Mr. Haiken. We were

          4  concerned about your non-appearance. We were going

          5  to hold up the progress of government until you got

          6  here.

          7                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Good morning. I'm

          8  David Pechefsky, from the City Council Finance

          9  Division.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Hi, David.

         11                 MR. PECHEFSKY: If you'll please refer

         12  to page two of the memo from myself to Chairman

         13  Berman, you'll see that there are three Land Use

         14  items up for consideration for partial tax

         15  exemptions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: It's probably

         17  under the document referring to the BIDs.

         18                 All right, the first one is the TIL

         19  Program, that's Land Use 1001, and that's in Council

         20  Member Michels' district, 400 West 152nd Street, one

         21  building, ten units. It's a 28-year exemption,

         22  initial exemption being for 6,700. The 28-year

         23  exemption being 330,000.

         24                 Mr. Michels, are you aware of this?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Do you recommend

          3  it?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, I would.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I would

          6  suggest the Committee voting for it, despite that.

          7  Notwithstanding.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The fact of

          9  the matter is it's a wonderful program and this

         10  gives an opportunity for tenants to become owners of

         11  their property and with commensurate pride and great

         12  advantages for the neighborhood and the building

         13  itself.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I agree with

         15  that, so, thank you.

         16                 Are there any other comments on this

         17  one?

         18                 We now go to Land Use 1046, which is

         19  a Partnership New Homes Program. Edgemere Phase A,

         20  Council Member Watkins District in Queens.

         21                 This is a large one, it's 79

         22  buildings, 147 units.

         23                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes, it's 11

         24  single-family homes and 68 two-family homes, so it

         25  is a big project.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: It's a 20-year

          3  exemption. The first year being 125,000 in tax

          4  abatements. The full TIL 20-year exemption being

          5  2,200,000.

          6                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          8  questions?

          9                 Council Member Watkins has welcomed

         10  -- oh, Mr. Spigner.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I don't have

         12  any question, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to make a

         13  comment of my observation on these partnership-type

         14  homes, what they tend to do is they come into --

         15  these sites are usually in older neighborhoods, and

         16  they build these houses and they put these burglar

         17  bars on as a part of the --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Did you say

         19  burglar alarms?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Burglar bars.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh, burglar bars.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Burglar bars

         23  or security bars, and if you walk through some of

         24  the neighborhoods, you will see that these are the

         25  only houses with the bars on it. These are the only

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  houses with the bars on them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Do you feel

          4  that's demeaning to the community?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Of course it

          6  is.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're probably

          8  right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Of course it

         10  is.

         11                 I guarantee you, if you would ask the

         12  builder of this proposed site what his plans are, he

         13  would tell you that it includes, which adds another

         14  $2,000 for building, another $2,000 for building,

         15  which becomes part of the 30-year mortgage at 6, 7,

         16  8, 9 percent, and the person buying the building has

         17  no choice in the matter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, it's

         19  probably a specification set forth by the City.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh, this is

         22  optional?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Optional.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Do you know that

         25  as to whether or not it's optional or a City
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          2  specification?

          3                 MR. PECHEFSKY: No, I would have to

          4  get back to you on that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: First of all,

          6  the developer comes in, there's a community sponsor,

          7  and they're supposed to be working with the

          8  community, and so an issue like this, that can be

          9  resolved -- I mean, there is nothing that mandates

         10  that those bars have to be part of the house before

         11  it's constructed.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: He doesn't know

         13  that yet. He's going to find out.

         14                 MR. PECHEFSKY: I would have to get

         15  back to you. But, yes, I believe it should be at

         16  HPD's discretion, at HPD, and the Partnership could

         17  work with the developer and change the

         18  specifications, if it was deemed appropriate to do

         19  so.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I think that Mr.

         21  Spigner and Mr. Robles raise a reasonable question.

         22  Of course, if, in fact, it is the wish of the

         23  community to include that, it's another story. On

         24  the other hand --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: The community
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          2  has nothing to say about it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, then, I

          4  think it certainly bares inquiry, and perhaps we

          5  should broaden the involvement of the community to

          6  deal with it. But would you find out for us, please?

          7                 MR. PECHEFSKY: I'll follow up.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I'm not

         10  holding up the vote on it, Mr. Chairman. But I just,

         11  I bring this to your attention to know that this is

         12  a course of being put on these buildings that the

         13  purchasers have no option but to make it a part of a

         14  humungous mortgage, monthly mortgage bill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         16                 Any other questions?

         17                 Thank you. We now finally have the

         18  last one which is 1073, which is a New Foundations

         19  Program, Mott Haven Site 3, the Habitat for

         20  Humanity.

         21                 This is in the Bronx, Council Member

         22  Espada's district, 13 buildings, 13 units, 13

         23  one-family homes.

         24                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes, that's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: This is also a
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          2  20-year exemption, the first year having a 14,000

          3  exemption, cumulative 20-year exemption of a quarter

          4  of a million dollars.

          5                 Any questions?

          6                 No questions? Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Wait. Before

          9  you go, please let Jim Gardella know that I missed

         10  him.

         11                 MR. PECHEFSKY: I will.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We now have

         13  before us two BIDs, 886 and 888. I'm required by law

         14  upon the opening of the hearing to make the

         15  following statement, so, bearing in mind that I have

         16  not rehearsed it, I would ask that you pay

         17  attention, because we are required to make this

         18  statement and to ask for questions.

         19                 Good morning. Today we are holding

         20  our final hearing on Intros Number 886 and 888, two

         21  local laws that would establish a new Kingsbridge

         22  BID in the Bronx, and an 86th Street Bay Ridge BID

         23  in Brooklyn, respectively.

         24                 On March 28th, this Committee held

         25  public hearings required by law on these two local
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          2  laws. At that time, all those who wanted to be heard

          3  on the establishment of these two BIDs were given an

          4  opportunity to be heard. The period began, during

          5  which anyone objecting to the BIDs were given the

          6  opportunity to file an objection with the City

          7  Clerk.

          8                 Under the law, if 51 percent or more

          9  of the property owners or owners owning at least 51

         10  percent of the assessed valuation of the property

         11  objected, we could not adopt the local law.

         12                 However, as the Department of

         13  Business Services will tell us, in the case of the

         14  Bay Ridge BID, there were no objections filed, and

         15  the case of the Kingsbridge, one property owner

         16  filed objections on behalf of two properties clearly

         17  below the legal limit.

         18                 Thus, if the Committee can answer the

         19  following four questions in the affirmative, we can

         20  adopt the local laws establishing the BIDs.

         21                 May I point out that if, in fact,

         22  more than 51 percent object, then we are mandated to

         23  reject the BIDs. If less than 51 object, it's within

         24  our discretion, we could still do it, if we chose

         25  to.
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          2                 Anyhow, with respect to each BID the

          3  questions we must be prepared to answer are as

          4  follows:

          5                 1) Were all notices of hearing, for

          6  hearings required to be held, published and mailed

          7  as required by laws and otherwise sufficient?

          8                 2) Does all the real property within

          9  the district's boundary benefit from the

         10  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         11  provided by law?

         12                 3) If all real property benefitted by

         13  the district -- I'm sorry. Is all real property

         14  benefitted by the district included within the

         15  district; and

         16                 4) Is the establishment of the

         17  district in the best interest of the public?

         18                 After listening to the Department of

         19  Business Services' testimony and having reviewed the

         20  district plan and City Planning Commission Report

         21  before you, I ask that my colleagues consider these

         22  questions. An affirmative vote on the local law

         23  means that you are answering the questions

         24  affirmatively.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Can I ask a
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          2  question before we go on?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Robles.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Because if

          5  Business Services is coming, for three occasions

          6  when we met on similar, I've asked the following,

          7  and I'm just curious whether we have received it.

          8                 If you recall, BIDs, there are a

          9  number of BIDs pending, and have not been moving

         10  forward, and at a hearing when we asked the agency

         11  they said they were, and they were supposed to

         12  provide you, Mr. Chairman, and this Committee, the

         13  pending applications so that if there are those

         14  within -- I have groups who think that their

         15  application is already signed, sealed and delivered,

         16  and I can't answer and that's why I ask. And I'm not

         17  aware of seeing any list of any potential

         18  application like my own district --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are you

         20  interested in having all those BIDs that have

         21  pending applications, or those that are part of --

         22  reach the point of approval?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I'm interested

         24  in the application -- I'm interested in any

         25  application within my district that's being
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          2  considered, and, two, I think the next thing was,

          3  which of those are ready to move forward to the

          4  Council.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          6                 Do you want to come up and testify

          7  from Business Services, please?

          8                 MR. GLATTER: Good morning, Mr.

          9  Chairman, and members of the Finance Committee. I'm

         10  George Glatter, Executive Director of the

         11  Neighborhood Development Division at the Department

         12  of Business Services.

         13                 And, yes, we did hear your request,

         14  and that list was submitted to Legislative Affairs,

         15  and I will have to check with them about the list.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Yes, there is a

         17  gentleman here from Legislative Affairs.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Al.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, it's not Al.

         20                 Yes, Dana, would you come up to the

         21  table, please.

         22                 Dana, you might as well introduce

         23  yourself, because you're a new representative here.

         24                 MR. SHARP: Dana Sharp, with City

         25  Legislative Affairs.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, Dana,

          3  we're advised by the Commissioner --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Is this

          5  Business Services?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No. He is the

          7  Mayor's representative to the Council. Office of

          8  Legislative Affairs.

          9                 We're advised by the Commissioner

         10  that they have submitted the list that we

         11  anticipated and expected before you got here as to

         12  the identification of all BID applications now

         13  pending.

         14                 You said it was submitted to your

         15  office, we haven't received it yet. Will you, before

         16  the end of this meeting, will you find out when we

         17  will get the list of pending applications?

         18                 MR. SHARP: I will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         20                 First of all, good luck on your job.

         21                 MR. SHARP: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Second of all,

         23  you just got deductible time, from now on it hurts.

         24  I'm kidding.

         25                 Dana, Ms. Eisland has a question.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

          3  very much. I guess this question is for both of you.

          4                 But, Mr. Glatter, would you have any

          5  objections if a Council Member called and simply

          6  asked if a particular BID's paperwork and

          7  bureaucratic portfolio had reached there and was

          8  complete?

          9                 MR. GLATTER: Generally we work

         10  through legislative affairs, so I'd follow that

         11  pattern.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Gee, and I

         13  was going to say thank you so much for the

         14  cooperation in the past, it's been great, but I hope

         15  Legislative Affairs, if that's where the information

         16  has to come from, would be as forthcoming as I've

         17  always found DBS.

         18                 I don't necessarily think that

         19  individual questions need be answered by Legislative

         20  Affairs, but certainly I think every Council member

         21  deserves an immediate answer as to whether the BIDs

         22  that are working with the individual member are

         23  actually in conformance with all the paperwork and

         24  the point has been reached where Legislative Affairs

         25  has that information.
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          2                 Would you have any objections to

          3  that?

          4                 MR. GLATTER: I'll find it for you,

          5  and we'll get it to you as soon as we can.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I don't have

          7  a question. I mean, I've been working on one for

          8  five years that hopefully will be passed unanimously

          9  here today. But I have felt cooperation from the

         10  Administration, and I just want every other Council

         11  Member to be able to benefit from that, as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any other

         13  questions?

         14                 Ms. Pinkett.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: My concerns

         16  are slightly different. You mentioned that we could

         17  do this, despite the fact that there may not have

         18  been all of the compliance in support of the

         19  community, and if we found that there was an

         20  overriding good or need that we could act upon this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Or vice-versa.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Yes, okay.

         23                 My concerns that there seems to be,

         24  and I believe Council Member Robles can attest to

         25  this fact, that within our districts there are
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          2  people who are very upset by the fact that there

          3  have been BIDs and districts created that did not

          4  meet their need and was not properly consulted with

          5  in terms of their particular need, and I wonder, as

          6  we rush forward without adequate information, if we

          7  are not concerned about the pattern that we're

          8  establishing within the City, and, so, it would

          9  appear to me that a cursory explanation of the BIDs

         10  that we had not gotten answers to so far, served

         11  best the needs of the people that we represent.

         12                 I don't think I would be satisfied

         13  with having an answer for one district or two

         14  districts without regarding this as continuing a

         15  pattern that seems not to be responsive to so many

         16  districts as a whole, and while there may be some

         17  good in the creation of BIDs, I have also made known

         18  over the years my concern as to how we give away

         19  responsibilities of the Council and makes it very

         20  difficult for the people to seek redress.

         21                 So, I would like to see with this

         22  information that's coming forth, that we would be

         23  able to review that, ask questions, get answers,

         24  before we deliver again to the City of New York

         25  another BID.
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          2                 I believe the citizens deserve that

          3  kind of representation, and I'd like to see that be

          4  a legacy of this Council.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, hopefully

          6  Dana will get that information for us right away.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Well, with

          8  the information I hope we would have a chance to

          9  review and to question and get answers so that when

         10  we act upon it, we act with information and wisdom.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're welcome.

         13                 Okay, on the two BIDs before us, 886

         14  and 888.

         15                 MR. GLATTER: Okay, well, we're

         16  pleased to report that the results on the objections

         17  filed with the City Clerk against the establishment

         18  of the proposed 86th Street BID in Bay Ridge, in

         19  Brooklyn, and the proposed Kingsbridge Business

         20  Improvement District in the Bronx, at the conclusion

         21  of the objection period, which was 5:00 p.m., on

         22  April 27th, and taking into consideration any

         23  objections postmarked by that date, no objections

         24  were filed against the 86th Street Bay Ridge BID.

         25                 One property owner, who owns two
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          2  properties, filed objections with the City Clerk

          3  against the Kingsbridge BID.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Can I assume that

          5  those two properties constitute significantly less

          6  than 51 percent?

          7                 MR. GLATTER: Well, they're 3.7

          8  percent of the assessed value and it's 1.5 percent

          9  of the owners of benefitted property.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, statistically

         11  a dramatically insignificant percentage?

         12                 MR. GLATTER: Well, you would flip it

         13  around and say 98.5 percent, voice no objection.

         14                 A review of the objections filed

         15  concluded that neither the assessed value, nor

         16  owners of property percentage provided by the law

         17  had been reached. So, DBS requests that the City

         18  Council, having determined that the four questions

         19  that are required to be answered that you've

         20  mentioned in the affirmative have been affirmative,

         21  approve the establishment of the 86th Street Bay

         22  Ridge BID in Brooklyn and the Kingsbridge BID in the

         23  Bronx.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now, DBS is

         25  satisfied that there was an affirmative response to
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          2  the four questions?

          3                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, we are.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          5  questions?

          6                 Ms. Pinkett.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: You mentioned

          8  the percentage of the response. You also mentioned

          9  in your testimony the fact of circulation of

         10  information; can you give us the percentage that

         11  were notified and circulated the information?

         12                 MR. GLATTER: Absolutely.

         13                 Every single property owner, every

         14  tenant within the BID boundaries, was notified of

         15  the public hearing that took place at the Council

         16  on, I guess it was the 28th of March.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: And that

         18  notification went out when?

         19                 MR. GLATTER: That notification went

         20  out, I don't have the exact date, but it was at

         21  least ten days before the public hearing. March

         22  16th. Twelve days.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: And was there

         24  any hearing held within the community on this?

         25                 MR. GLATTER: Yes. The community
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          2  boards hold a hearing on --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Please. I

          4  would like to hear.

          5                 MR. GLATTER: In both cases the

          6  community boards held public hearings and in both

          7  cases recommended the establishment of the BID.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you so

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         11  other questions?

         12                 Okay, Ed O'Malley. Just for one

         13  second, please, Ed.

         14

         15  Ed, would you identify yourself and your title?

         16                 MR. O'MALLEY: Yes, good morning. I'm

         17  General Counsel for the City Clerk.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And is it the

         19  responsibility of the City Clerk to be the recipient

         20  of the filing of any objections?

         21                 MR. O'MALLEY: Yes, that's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And I just want

         23  to verify that the representation as to the

         24  objections were, in fact, as stated?

         25                 MR. O'MALLEY: Yes, that's true.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Do you also get

          3  proof of service of the notices? Is that filed in

          4  your office?

          5                 MR. O'MALLEY: No, just the

          6  objections.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          8                 Any questions of Mr. O'Malley?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Should they

         10  be filed in your office?

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Excuse me?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Should they

         13  be filed in your office?

         14                 MR. O'MALLEY: Well, the BID process

         15  doesn't come to our office until after the Council's

         16  meeting, so we wouldn't have a file to start with.

         17                 I mean, you'd have to really change

         18  the process.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Have you

         20  thought about the process? Have you looked into the

         21  process? Has it been discussed with you as a more

         22  efficient way of handling this process?

         23                 MR. O'MALLEY: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay. Go

         25  ahead. You were going to answer?
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          2                 MR. O'MALLEY: We haven't looked into

          3  it, no. I mean, we're just the recipients of the

          4  objections.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay, thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          8  other questions?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, thanks Ed.

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Okay, thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is there anybody

         13  else who wishes to testify on either of these items?

         14                 All right, would -- Sergeant, would

         15  you get Mr. Foster and ask him to -- oh, he's here.

         16  Okay, good.

         17                 All right, Dana, did you get that

         18  information from your office?

         19                 Dana, I want to know specifically

         20  when we will have that information.

         21                 MR. SHARP: I can say within two

         22  hours.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: What was that?

         24                 MR. SHARP: Within two hours we'll

         25  have the information.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We will have it?

          3                 MR. SHARP: Yes. And you would like it

          4  sent to whom? To you?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Myself.

          6                 MR. SHARP: The Chairman, okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, it's your

          8  representation that the Committee will have it

          9  within two hours?

         10                 MR. SHARP: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 MR. SHARP: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: On that

         15  representation, then I would like to go for a vote.

         16                 Everybody try to calm down. Go ahead,

         17  please call the vote.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Berman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I'm going to

         22  vote aye based on the testimony of the officials who

         23  are responsible for presenting the information and

         24  not on the assertion that we will have this within

         25  two hours, because I think that's subject to
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          2  approval from someone beyond this particular office.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Not traffic

          4  conditions?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Traffic

          6  conditions, weather conditions. I think his

          7  intentions may be good, but let's say he works for,

          8  he works for, he works for, and he takes orders like

          9  everyone else.

         10                 But I would suggest that even if we

         11  vote for this based upon the testimony that was

         12  given, my contention still remains that we should be

         13  much more careful about the BIDs we approve and we

         14  should demand the information in advance. I think we

         15  are too liberal in that we give away the parsimony

         16  of the people of the City of New York without

         17  adequate protection.

         18                 I vote aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Foster.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Michels.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: May I be

         25  temporarily excused to explain my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm going to

          4  vote aye, and I think that we should be doing

          5  everything we can to encourage responsible BIDs,

          6  because I think it shows initiative of the citizens

          7  of this City and it's very important for this City

          8  to, not only get the services, but to get the good

          9  will of the community.

         10                 And I'd like to be added as a prime

         11  sponsor to the Intro. No. 886. I think this is going

         12  to be a wonderful BID for Kingsbridge. I know the

         13  community very well, and the people involved with

         14  it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Which BID are you

         16  referring to?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The

         18  Kingsbridge BID. 886, Kingsbridge BID. And I'd like

         19  to be added as a prime sponsor, rather than a

         20  co-sponsor.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So be it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you

         23  very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eisland.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: May I be

          3  excused to explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Eisland.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I just want

          6  to say that not only were the four major concerns

          7  and rules followed through on, but notification went

          8  around, not only in the City of New York, but in the

          9  State of New York and various other regions of the

         10  United States, by mail, by phone call, and by every

         11  possible means to notify property owners, notify the

         12  states where property owners are no longer alive,

         13  and not simply to notify but to educate, I think in

         14  a very full and complete way. I can't imagine that

         15  any BID could do more than the Kingsbridge BID has

         16  done for a prolonged number of years.

         17                 So, I echo what Stan Michels said,

         18  and this BID is neighboring to parts of his

         19  district, and it will only enhance the entire North

         20  Bronx, as well as the Northern part of Manhattan.

         21  And I think it will enhance the revenues of New York

         22  City because it will finally begin to stanch the

         23  flow of tax dollars over the border, which are going

         24  to Yonkers and other parts of Westchester.

         25                 So, I enthusiastically not only vote
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          2  aye for the Kingsbridge BID, but also for the BID in

          3  Brooklyn, which I know has been traveling a parallel

          4  route as well, and I vote aye on all of the items

          5  today.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Koslowitz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Moskowitz.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Before you

         15  announce the vote, for those members who may not

         16  recall or remember, this Committee and the members

         17  of this Committee several years ago, because of our

         18  concerns for the dramatic expansion of BIDs and the

         19  process, did a very, very -- two major studies on

         20  the entire BID process, to the extent that it became

         21  a nationally famous and popular study, and that

         22  cities all over the country, as a consequence of

         23  this report, changed their processes as did the

         24  City. So, I think that we have been extraordinarily

         25  sensitive to the impact that BIDs have on
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          2  communities. We have been very supportive of them,

          3  and, more importantly, we've been concerned that

          4  there be notoriety and an open and notorious

          5  process, and I believe that the recommendations that

          6  we made and that the Mayor ultimately adopted

          7  accomplish that.

          8                 So, even though we are concerned, of

          9  course, as to the future, I think we can hold our

         10  head up high as having had a major impact on how

         11  BIDs operate.

         12                 Having said that now, please call the

         13  vote.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         15  ten in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         16  abstentions, the items are adopted.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you. May I

         18  congratulate the two BIDs, and wish you good luck.

         19                 Thank you so much.

         20                 (Hearing concluded 10:50 a.m.)
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